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Request For Proposal (RFP) 
401(a)/457(b) Plan Investment Advisor 

Section 1 – General Information 
Purpose 

The City of Lenexa Retirement Committee (the “Committee”) is soliciting competitive proposals 
from qualified vendors to provide co-fiduciary investment advisory/consulting services with 
respect to the City of Lenexa 401(a) Defined Contribution Plan (the “Section 401(a) Plan”), the 
City of Lenexa ICMA Retirement Plan (the “ICMA Section 457 Plan”), the City of Lenexa 
Kansas Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan (the “KPERS Section 457 Plan”), and 
the City of Lenexa Vantagepoint Roth IRA (the “ICMA Roth IRA Plan”) (each a “Plan,” and 
collectively the “Plans”) in accordance with the terms, specifications, and conditions set forth in 
this Request for Proposals (“RFP”).  The first of the four listed Plans above is intended to be 
qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  The next two 
Plans are intended to meet the requirements of Code Section 457(b).  The last Plan listed is a 
Roth IRA program. 

The Committee is looking for assistance in three primary areas: 

 1.  Selection and monitoring of investment options made available under the Plans; 

 2.  Participant education and/or advice; and 

 3.  Assistance with an RFP for an Investment (platform) Provider for the Plans 

RFP Format 

This RFP has three sections.  Section 1 contains general information about the request; Section 2 
contains information about the Plans that may be useful to respondents; and Section 3 contains 
specific requirements for proposals. 

Inquiries 

Any and all inquiries concerning this RFP must be submitted by e-mail.  The deadline for such 
inquiries is 5:00 p.m. on September 26, 2017.  All inquiries or requests for clarification must be 
addressed to John L. Utz at: 

jutz@utzlattan.com 

All inquiries will be responded to at the same time, and the response will be sent to all potential 
vendors.  Vendors may NOT contact any member of the Committee or any officer, 
executive, official, or member of the Governing Body, of the City of Lenexa (the “City”).  
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Violation of this requirement may result in rejection of the vendor’s proposal.  The person named 
above is the sole contact for any and all inquiries after this RFP has been released. 

Oral Statements and Commitments 

Vendors must clearly understand that any verbal representations made, or assumed to be made, 
during any oral discussions held between the vendor’s representatives and any member of the 
Committee, any employee of the City, any member of the Governing Body of the City, or the 
Committee’s contact for this RFP shall not be considered.  Only information issued in writing 
and added to the RFP by an official, written addendum will be considered in the selection 
process. 

Proposal Format and Submission 

Proposals must be dated and signed by a person who is authorized to bind the vendor as to the 
terms, conditions, and fees contained in the proposal.  Proposals must remain effective for at 
least 90 days from the date submitted.  Vendors must address each of the items set forth in the 
Specific Requirements in Section 3 of this RFP to be considered.  This RFP is being distributed 
electronically.  If you wish to receive a hard copy, please e-mail your request to John Utz, at 
jutz@utzlattan.com.  

Proposals should be prepared simply, providing a straight-forward, concise description of the 
vendor’s ability to satisfy the requirements of the RFP.  Neither the Committee, the City, nor Utz 
& Lattan, LLC will be responsible for any costs that a vendor may incur in the preparation of the 
proposal. 

Each proposal must include (in the order identified below): 

• The name and contact information for the vendor, including the name and contact 
information of the individual who is authorized to speak on behalf of the vendor; 

• A table of contents for the proposal; 

• Answers to each of the questions set forth in Section 3 of the RFP (in the order set forth 
in Section 3); 

• Total proposed fees for the services offered, and the manner in which that fee will be 
assessed; 

• List of at least three references we may contact; 

• Other information the vendor deems appropriate. 

Failure to address specific questions and requirements set forth in this RFP will be grounds to 
disqualify the proposal.  The Committee reserves the right to waive defects and/or minor 
irregularities in proposals, to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposals deemed to be 
in the best interest of the Committee, in its sole discretion.   The Committee also reserves the 
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right to reject a specific proposal from, but to engage in negotiations with, a particular 
responding vendor.  Even if the Committee “selects” a responding vendor, the Committee 
(and the City) shall not be bound by the proposal, but shall be bound solely by the terms of 
the written services agreement that the parties subsequently enter into, which may or may 
not include all of the terms of the vendor’s proposal. 

Vendors must submit proposals electronically.  Proposals must be received by Utz & Lattan, 
LLC no later than 5:00 p.m. on October 10, 2017.  Electronic versions of the proposal may be 
submitted by e-mail to John Utz at jutz@utzlattan.com.  Proposals received after this deadline 
will not be considered.  No exceptions will be permitted. 

Timeline of Events 

Release of RFP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . September 18, 2017 
Deadline for written inquiries . . . . . . . . . September 26, 2017 
Bid submission deadline . . . . . . . . . . . . . October 10, 2017 
Interviews with finalists (if required) . . . October 30 through November 9, 2017 
Notification to bidders . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  December 1, 2017 

The Committee reserves the right to cancel this RFP without any obligation to the Committee, 
the City, or Utz & Lattan, LLC. 

Selection Process 

Members of the Committee will review the proposals and make the selection decision.  The 
Committee intends to select the most qualified vendor based upon its view of the vendor’s 
expertise, business philosophy, and proposed fees.  The Committee reserves the right to schedule 
oral presentations of those vendors it deems most qualified.  Neither the Committee, the City, nor 
Utz & Lattan, LLC will be liable for any costs or expenses that responding vendors may incur in 
the preparation or presentation of the proposal. 
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Section 2 – Plan Information 
Plan Sponsor 

The City of Lenexa is a Kansas municipality.  It has approximately 450 full-time employees.  
The City offers as part of its employee benefit package a Section 401(a) plan, three Section 
457(b) plans, and a frozen defined benefit plan.  In addition, many employees are covered under 
state public employee defined benefit pension plans, such as the Kansas Public Employees 
Retirement System and the Kansas Police & Firemen’s Retirement System.  The four Plans to 
which this RFP relates are the City’s only defined contribution retirement plans. 

Plan Summary 

• The City believes the Plans are governmental plans, and therefore exempt from the 
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”). 

• Employees are permitted to make contributions from their compensation to the Section 
457(b) Plans. 

• The City contributes four percent of compensation to the Section 401(a) Plan for 
participants in that Plan, and also makes a matching contribution to the Section 401(a) 
Plan equal to 50 percent of the compensation contributed by participants to the Section 
457 Plans, up to a maximum matching contribution of two percent of compensation. 

• The number of participants and total plan assets for the Plans is approximately as follows: 

KPERS Section 457 Plan  
Participants – 555 
Plan Assets – $24,940,432 

Section 401(a) Plan  
Participants – 525 
Plan Assets - $13,146,580 

ICMA Section 457 Plan  
Participants – 29 
Assets - $1,264,825 

ICMA Roth IRA Plan 
Participants – 11 
Assets - $137,401 

• Participants are permitted to choose how monies in their Section 401(a) and 457(b) Plan 
accounts are to be invested from an array of investment alternatives selected by the 
Committee. 
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Section 3 – Proposal Requirements 
About Your Firm / Team 

Please tell us about your firm.  If your team is affiliated with a large firm that includes multiple 
teams around the country, please tell us about your team. 

1. Firm (Team) Name: 

2. Address: 

3. Contact for this RFP 

Name: 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: 

4. Describe the  ownership and structure of your firm (team) 

5. List your firm’s lines of business (including affiliated companies) 

6. How many years has your firm been in business?  

7. Briefly describe your firm’s history 

(a) How many years has your firm been servicing retirement plan clients? 

(b) What documentation of your firm’s history servicing retirement plan clients can 
you provide? 

8. What is the total number of employees in the firm?  

(a) Of those, number of employees who are Investment Advisory Representatives 
(IAR).  

(b) Do you use sub-contractors?  

__ Yes      No 

(i)  If Yes, who and for what services? 

9. What is the position of your firm in the employer-sponsored retirement plans business? 

(a) Percentage of revenue derived from retirement plan investment advisory services? 
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(b) Plan assets under advisement 

(c) Total number of clients with a defined contribution (401(a)/401(k)/403(b)/457(b)) 
plans under your advisement, total number of clients with governmental Section 
401(a) plans under your advisement, total number of Section 457(b) plans under 
your advisement, total number of Roth IRA plans under your advisement, and 
total number of governmental clients under your advisement 

(d) Number of core client plans (with whom your firm has regular quarterly contact)   

(e) Number of client plans added over the past 24 months 

(f) Number of client plans lost over the past 24 months 

(g) What is the average duration of your relationships with client plans? 

(h) Recognition received from independent sources demonstrating expertise and 
credibility as a retirement plan advisor 

10. Please list the types of services your firm offers for retirement plans 

11. Does your firm provide services under a registered investment advisor (RIA), registered 
representative, or dually registered model? 

12. Describe what differentiates your firm from other investment consulting firms. 

13. How does your firm define and measure the success of retirement plan consulting 
relationships?  

14. Please list the federal, state, and other regulatory agencies with which your firm is 
licensed or registered, and the type of license held. 

(a) Please indicate which team members are not registered or licensed, and why. 

15. Have any individuals from your firm ever been disciplined by any government regulator 
for unethical or improper conduct or been sued by a client who was not happy with the 
work performed by the firm?   If so, please explain briefly. 

16. Has your firm or any advisor of your firm been found guilty of any violation or paid any 
fines because of violations of securities regulations or ERISA?   If so, please explain 
briefly. 

17. Is your firm bonded/insured?  If so, to what amount? 

18. Does your firm work with client plans on an advisory basis? 

(a) If applicable, please provide a copy of both parts of your firm’s most recent SEC 
Form ADV. 
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19. Does your firm work with clients on a commission basis? 

20. Please provide a current list of representative clients 

21. Please list three reference clients similar to our organization in terms of size; include the 
name, address, phone number, and e-mail address of a contact person for each of these 
references 

Service Team 

22. Describe your service model to our plan (staff, responsibilities, interactions with our plan, 
frequency of in-person meetings, frequency of conference calls, team dynamics) 

23. Primary contact for our relationship: 

Name: 

Title: 

City and State 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Email: 

(a) Overall experience with employer-sponsored retirement plans 

(b) Education, honors, designations and other credentials 

(c) Regular activities to stay current on market and regulatory developments 

(d) Area(s) of expertise 

(e) Years with the firm 

(f) Role at the firm 

(g) Number of plans supported 

(h) Average size of plans supported 

(i) Does this individual have the authority to enter into binding agreements on behalf 
of the firm? 

(j) Number of plans lost this year 

24. Will the primary contact be the only person with whom we will be working? 
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__ Yes      No (if no, please list name(s), contact information, and profile information for 
each person) 

Contact Name:   

Title: 

City and State: 

Phone:    

Email:    

(a) Overall experience with employer-sponsored retirement plans 

(b) Education, honors, designations, and other credentials 

(c) Area(s) of expertise 

(d) Years with the firm 

(e) Role on the team serving our plan 

(f) Number of plans supported 

(g) Average size of plans supported 

Investment Services 

25. Describe your firm’s approach to governmental Section 401(a) plan investment 
consulting, and your firm’s approach to Section 457(b) plan investment consulting 

26. What investment policy statement support do you offer?  

27. What tools does your firm use to evaluate investment funds and managers?   

(a) Which of these tools are proprietary to your firm, developed in-house or 
developed specifically for your firm? 

28. Describe your investment research resources and capabilities 

(a) How are investment benchmarks determined? 

(b) Is your investment research proprietary or from a third party?  

29. Do you hold performance review meetings with clients and what reports do they receive? 

30. Do you have an investment watch list?  If so, what is your termination/replacement 
recommendation process? 
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31. What actions do you take when investments are not performing? 

32. Provide a sample of a written recommendation provided to a client 

33. Please explain what co-fiduciary investment advice services that you are prepared to 
provide to the Committee. 

Participant Education/Advice Services 

34. Please list the types of services your firm provides to retirement plan participants 

35. Do you assist with new participant enrollment?  If so, how? 

36. Do you offer investment advice/education to participants? 

(a) Briefly describe your background and experience providing investment 
communication and education programs to participants 

(b) Describe separately your initial and ongoing communication and education 
program (including printed material, visits, training, etc.) 

(c) Do you offer one-on-one investment education to participants? 

(d) Is investment education provided by members of your organization or via a third 
party?  Are there any additional costs for investment education?  If so, please 
disclose those costs, and how they would be assessed, in your proposal. 

(e) Describe the process you would use to help the Committee measure the 
effectiveness of employee education efforts 

(f) Does your organization provide any services (e.g., personal questionnaires, 
software) that would help individual participants with financial planning? 

(g) Is your organization and/or your service team permitted to offer ancillary products 
and services (e.g., life insurance, annuities) to our employees? 

(h) Describe any electronic education tools you provide, both software-based and 
web-based 

(i) Describe your position on providing investment advice to participants (as opposed 
to investment education).  What fiduciary responsibilities do you assume if advice 
is provided to participants? 

(j) If advice is offered, is it provided by members of your organization or via a third 
party?  Are there any additional costs for investment advice?  If so, please 
disclose those costs, and how they would be assessed, in your proposal. 
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(k) Describe your ability to customize enrollment/education materials and the costs 
(if any) associated with such customization 

37. Do you offer model asset allocations or managed accounts?  If so, please describe who 
creates and manages the models, how they are monitored and benchmarked, and any 
additional fee associated with them 

38. Please provide 2 specific examples of ways in which your firm has made a positive 
impact on retirement plans you support over the past 24 months (For example:  increased 
participation, increased deferrals, enhanced services, lowered fees) 

Provider / Vendor Services 

39. Describe your vendor benchmark service and process 

40. Describe your service provider search RFP service and process 

41. In the past 36 months, how many Investment (platform) Provider searches have you 
conducted for the defined contribution plans your firm supports? 

(a) How many of these resulted in a change in Investment (platform) Provider? 

(b) List the three Investment (platform) Providers that you have recommended most 
often over the past 36 months 

42. With how many different service providers does your firm work to support current 
clients? 

43. What experience do you have with our current Investment (platform) Providers (ICMA 
and KPERS/Empower)? 

(a) What relevant issues should we be aware of/focused on? 

44. What plan design change initiatives have you led with your clients in the past 24 months? 

45. Describe the support services that you provide to the plan sponsor’s human resources 
personnel 

Fiduciary Status and Compliance 

46. Do you intend to act as a co-fiduciary for the plan and/or its participants?   (Note:  if you 
do not answer yes, your proposal will not be considered by the Committee.) 

47. Describe your fiduciary responsibility to our plan, including your ability to serve in a 
capacity like that under ERISA 3(21) or 3(38) (that is, as if the Plans were subject to 
ERISA) 

48. Describe your fiduciary responsibility to our plan participants 
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49. Describe potential conflicts of interest that may arise with the proposed advisory 
relationship 

50. Does your firm have a written policy for addressing conflict of interest?   

__ Yes      No 

(a) If yes, please describe 

51. Has your organization, any of its employees, or any of your clients been the subject of an 
investigation by the Department of Labor? 

__ Yes      No 

(a) If yes, please describe 

Fees/Expenses 

52. How is your firm compensated for services? 

53. What percentage of your firm’s revenue is derived from: 

(a) Commission relationships? 

(b) Advisory relationships? 

54. Does your firm receive any form of compensation or benefits – directly or indirectly – 
from companies or individuals whose products or services you may refer or recommend?  

__ Yes      No 

(a) If yes, please explain 

55. Will your firm, its employees, or any affiliated or related entity be paid fees and/or 
commissions (including those from revenue sharing arrangements) for services related to 
our plan from sources other than the plan or City? 

56. Does your firm, its employees, or any affiliated or related entity derive any economic 
benefit from any investment entities, intermediaries, or service providers that are or will 
be involved with our plan? 

57. Please describe any and all fees for the services that you propose to provide to our plan 

58. Are you willing to guarantee your fees for a specific period of time? 

59. As noted above, the City intends to enter into a written agreement with you detailing the 
services that you will provide to the Plan.   Do you have a sample services agreement that 
you typically provide?  
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__ Yes      No 

(a) If so, please include a sample. 

(b) Is your “sample” or “form” services agreement negotiable? 

___Yes      ___No 

60. What is your ability to offset fees with 12b-1 fees, finders’ fees, or other fees embedded 
within the plans’ investments? 

61. Do you bill for, or expect to be reimbursed for, any expenses in addition to the fees 
described above?  If so, please explain. 

Technology 

62. Describe any technology available to your firm (excluding technology of our provider) 

(a) Which of this technology is proprietary to your firm, built in-house or specifically 
for your firm? 

Security and Business Continuity 

63. Please describe the succession plan for the primary contact who will be working with our 
plan 

64. Please describe the succession plan of your firm  

65. Please describe your firm’s data security measures  

 

Other 

65. Are there questions that we did not ask (or information that we did not ask for) that you 
typically see in RFPs for plans such as ours?   If so, please identify those questions (or 
categories of information) and provide a brief reply to each. 


